

**DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY**  
**COLORADO STATE PATROL**  
**INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES SECTION**  
**COLORADO AUTOMOBILE THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY**  
**8 CCR 1507-50**

**STATEMENT OF BASIS, STATUTORY AUTHORITY, AND PURPOSE**

§42-5-112 (1) and (2), CRS, create the Colorado Automobile Theft Prevention Authority (CATPA) in the Colorado Department of Public Safety (CDPS) and the Colorado Automobile Theft Prevention Authority Board responsible for making decisions affecting the administration of CATPA and grants issued thereby.

Under §42-5-112 (3) (f), CRS, the Executive Director of the CDPS is given authority to promulgate rules and regulations applicable to the review, approval, and administration of grants issued through CATPA consistent with §42-5-112 (3), CRS. These rules are presently codified as 8 CCR 1507-50. During the 2023 Colorado General Assembly Session, 42-5-112, CRS, was amended by SB 23-257. It is in response to this legislation and an internal review of the CATPA rules that amendments are being proposed.

The amendments proposed to 8 CCR 1507-50 are intended to:

- Respond to the changes introduced into §42-5-112, CRS, through SB 23-257 expanding the scope of the CATPA grant program to include programs supporting victims of automotive theft and to promote the enhancement of technology used to counter automobile theft and automobile theft-related crimes.
- Respond to other changes introduced into §42-5-112, CRS, through 23-257 affecting funding and application thereof to programs designed to counteract automobile theft and automobile theft-related crimes.
- Clarify CATPA Grant Funding Initiatives for which grant funding may be available and the guidelines and criteria according to the Board will consider all grant applications received to determine eligibility and award approval.
- Clarify when approval of funding is final; and
- Update references to documents and websites cited within the rules and address general grammar, formatting, and verbiage updates throughout.

It has been declared by the General Assembly that the creation of a program and board dedicated to supporting programs designed to address the prevention of and/or the prosecution of automobile theft and automobile theft-related crimes is a matter of statewide concern. The absence of rules to implement and carry out a response to these issues and the statutory purpose of §42-5-112, CRS, is contrary to the peace, health, and welfare of the citizens of this state. For these reasons, these amended rules should be adopted.

---

Stan Hilkey, Executive Director

---

Date of Adoption

Colorado Department of Public Safety

Publication Note: All ~~strikeout~~ text reflects deletions; all **red or RED CAPITALIZED** text reflects additions, and all **blue or blue-strikeout text** reflects existing text that has been relocated. Text may also reflect a combination of strikeout and blue font to indicate from where in the document the text has been removed.

**DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SAFETY**  
**COLORADO STATE PATROL**  
**INVESTIGATIVE SERVICES SECTION**  
**COLORADO AUTOMOBILE THEFT PREVENTION AUTHORITY**  
**8 CCR 1507-50**

**CATPA 1: AUTHORITY TO ADOPT RULES AND REGULATIONS**

The Executive Director of the CDPS is authorized by §42-5-112 (3) (f), CRS, to adopt rules and regulations applicable to the review and approval of grant applications received and reviewed by the CATPA Board from law enforcement agencies and Qualified Applicants for programs and activities consistent with §42-5-112 (3) (f), CRS. Programs consistent with §42-5-112 (3) (f), CRS, include those programs requesting assistance to support or improve automobile theft prevention or enforcement within the state of Colorado or the prosecution thereof through statewide planning and coordination consistent with statute and as enumerated through these rules.

**CATPA 2: APPLICABILITY**

These rules and regulations shall apply to the review and approval of all grant applications by law enforcement agencies or other Qualified Applicants to the CATPA Board requesting financial support or assistance for programs and/or activities consistent with §42-5-112 (3) (f), CRS.

**CATPA 3: DEFINITIONS**

Unless otherwise specified, the following definitions ~~are applicable~~ **APPLY** to these rules:

- 3.1. AUTOMOBILE:** ~~Means a~~ **AN AUTOMOBILE IS A** motor vehicle as defined within §42-5-101 (5), CRS, which is any vehicle of whatever description propelled by any power other than muscular, except a vehicle running on rails.
- 3.2. CATPA:** Defined under §42-5-112 (1), CRS, and is referred to throughout these rules as the Colorado Automobile Theft Prevention Authority.

Publication Note: All ~~strikeout~~ text reflects deletions; all **red or RED CAPITALIZED** text reflects additions, and all **blue or blue-strikeout text** reflects existing text that has been relocated. Text may also reflect a combination of strikeout and blue font to indicate from where in the document the text has been removed.

- 3.3. **CATPA BOARD (“BOARD”)**: Created by §42-5-112 (2), CRS, the board that solicits, reviews, awards, and evaluates grant projects funded ~~pursuant to~~ **UNDER** §42-5-112 (4), CRS. Referred to throughout these rules as the “Board.”
- 3.4. **CATPA GRANT MANAGERS GUIDANCE MANUAL (GMG)**: The guidance publication approved by the Board **THAT PROVIDES** ~~providing~~ information on grant application requirements and processes. The GMG is updated annually and the most current version publicly available **APPLIES** ~~is applicable~~ to these rules.
- 3.5. **CDPS**: Colorado Department of Public Safety.
- 3.6. **CSP**: Colorado State Patrol.
- 3.7. **CSP CATPA BUSINESS UNIT**: The business unit within the CSP **THAT IS** responsible for the day-to-day operations and support of the Board, consistent with §42-5-112 (3) (c) and (d), CRS.
- 3.8. **GRANT-FUNDED INITIATIVES: THE CATPA BOARD WILL CONSIDER GRANT APPLICATIONS THAT MEET ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING INITIATIVES:** ~~**QUALIFIED APPLICANT: A Colorado law enforcement agency, state agency, local unit of government, independent school district, not for profit or for profit organization that can demonstrate its proposed program addresses some aspect of automobile theft prevention.**~~
  - 3.8.1. **DEDICATED AUTOMOBILE THEFT PROSECUTION PROGRAMS:** INITIATIVES THAT FOCUS ON THE SUPPORT OF ONE OR MORE DEDICATED PROSECUTORS WHO HAVE THE SPECIFIC MISSION AND EXPERTISE TO PROVIDE LEGAL GUIDANCE AND PROSECUTORIAL CONTINUITY TO COMPLEX CRIMINAL CASES ARISING FROM THE ACTIVITIES OF A MULTI-AGENCY LAW ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM. THESE PROGRAMS SUPPORT THE ABILITY OF PROSECUTORS TO COORDINATE ACROSS JURISDICTIONAL BOUNDARIES TO EFFECTIVELY IDENTIFY AND PROSECUTE AUTOMOBILE THEFT, FRAUD, AND RELATED CRIMES, PRIMARILY THOSE INVOLVING PROLIFIC, REPEAT, OR HABITUAL OFFENDERS.
  - 3.8.2. **ENFORCEMENT:** INITIATIVES THAT MAY INCLUDE A COLORADO LAW ENFORCEMENT PROGRAM AND FOCUS ON REDUCING AUTOMOBILE THEFT, FRAUD, AND RELATED CRIMES USING AND OTHERWISE SUPPORTING A VARIETY OR COMBINATION OF ENFORCEMENT MODELS, SUCH AS A MULTI-AGENCY OR MULTI-CRIME REAL CRIME CENTER, INFORMAL DEPLOYMENT PROGRAM, PROBLEM-ORIENTED DIRECTED MODEL, ANALYTICALLY ORIENTED DIRECTED MODEL, SATURATION PATROL MODEL, OR INVESTIGATIVE INTELLIGENCE-LED POLICING MODEL.

Publication Note: All ~~strikeout~~ text reflects deletions; all **red or RED CAPITALIZED** text reflects additions, and all **blue or blue-strikeout text** reflects existing text that has been relocated. Text may also reflect a combination of strikeout and blue font to indicate from where in the document the text has been removed.

**3.8.3. FIRST-TIME OFFENDER REHABILITATION PROGRAMS:** INITIATIVES THAT INCLUDE PROGRAMS FOCUSED ON PREVENTION OF FUTURE CRIMINAL BEHAVIOR BY FIRST-TIME OFFENDERS WHO HAVE BEEN CHARGED, CONVICTED, OR ADJUDICATED FOR AUTOMOBILE THEFT.

**3.8.4. PREVENTION, EDUCATION, AND OUTREACH:** INITIATIVES THAT FOCUS ON THE REDUCTION OF THE PUBLIC’S VICTIMIZATION BY AUTOMOBILE THEFT, FRAUD, AND RELATED CRIMES THROUGH CRIME PREVENTION ACTIVITIES, PUBLIC OUTREACH AND PUBLIC AWARENESS CAMPAIGNS. THESE PROGRAMS INCLUDE:

**3.8.4.1. PUBLIC EDUCATION AND PREVENTION:** EFFORTS TO MODIFY AN OBSERVABLE CHANGE IN HUMAN BEHAVIOR RELATED TO THE VIABLE THREAT, IMPACT, OR EXPOSURE OF AUTOMOBILE THEFT AND RELATED CRIMES BY ENGAGING IN BEHAVIOR MODIFICATION TECHNIQUES PROPOSED FOR DECREASING AUTOMOBILE THEFT. PUBLIC EDUCATION PROJECTS ARE TYPICALLY AIMED AT HIGH-RISK FACTORS THAT MAY INCLUDE POPULATIONS, GEOGRAPHICAL AREAS, ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS, MOST-AT-RISK STOLEN VEHICLE OWNERS WITH THE INTENT TO USE CLASSICAL CONDITIONING AND/OR OPERANT CONDITIONING METHODS TO MODIFY THE BEHAVIOR OF THE AUTOMOBILE OWNERS AND/OR DRIVERS AS PUBLIC EDUCATION AND PREVENTION EFFORTS FOCUS ON BEHAVIORAL CHANGE. OBSERVATIONS AND DATA RESULTS ARE TYPICALLY RELIED UPON TO DEMONSTRATE AND DETERMINE THE EFFECTIVENESS OF PROGRAMS.

**3.8.4.2. PUBLIC OUTREACH AND AWARENESS:** EFFORTS COMMUNICATING GENERAL MESSAGES, DANGERS, AND PREVENTION TECHNIQUES TO MINIMIZE THE RISK OF VICTIMIZATION BY AUTOMOBILE THEFT, PUBLIC OUTREACH AND AWARENESS. THIS PROCESS TYPICALLY INVOLVES DEVELOPING AND COMMUNICATING FACTUAL INFORMATION TO A SELECTED GROUP OR THE GENERAL PUBLIC TO INCREASE THE LEVEL OF UNDERSTANDING, ATTENTIVENESS, ALERTNESS, OR ATTENTION ON OR TO THE RISK BEHAVIORS OR INCIDENCES OF AUTOMOBILE THEFT.

**3.8.4.3. VEHICLE SYSTEMS HARDENING:** EFFORTS FOCUSED ON ELEVATING VEHICLE SECURITY SYSTEMS TO SAFEGUARD AUTOMOBILES FROM THEFT, FRAUD, AND RELATED CRIMES, INCLUDING AFTER-MARKET ENGINE IMMOBILIZERS, BATTERY IMMOBILIZERS, STEERING WHEEL LOCKS, TIRE LOCKS, HITCH LOCKS, VEHICLE SECURITY SOFTWARE

Publication Note: All ~~strikeout~~ text reflects deletions; all **red or RED CAPITALIZED** text reflects additions, and all **blue or blue-strikeout text** reflects existing text that has been relocated. Text may also reflect a combination of strikeout and blue font to indicate from where in the document the text has been removed.

UPGRADES/UPDATES, OWNER APPLIED TRACKERS, MECHANICAL MARKING PRODUCTS, ALARMS, OR OTHER VEHICLE SECURITY TOOLS, PRODUCTS OR TECHNIQUES DESIGNED AND INTENDED TO REDUCE VULNERABILITIES IN EXISTING AUTOMOBILE TECHNOLOGY AND MECHANICAL SYSTEMS.

- 3.8.5. TECHNOLOGY ENHANCEMENT:** INITIATIVES THAT FOCUS ON THE IMPROVEMENT, DEVELOPMENT, AUGMENTATION OR ACQUISITION OF EXISTING OR NEW TECHNOLOGY TO IDENTIFY, TRACK, ANALYZE OR STUDY THE CRIME OF AUTOMOBILE THEFT, FRAUD, AND RELATED CRIMES USING INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY CONSISTENT WITH §24-72-113, CRS, (PASSIVE SURVEILLANCE RECORDS), §24-74-102 (1), CRS, (PERSONAL IDENTIFYING INFORMATION), AND 28 CFR PART 23 (CRIMINAL JUSTICE INFORMATION SHARING). TECHNOLOGY ENHANCEMENTS MAY INCLUDE COMPONENTS TO HEIGHTEN THE CAPABILITIES OF THE AUTOMOBILE THEFT TRACKING AND REPORTING SYSTEM, SUCH AS THE USE OF AUTOMATED LICENSE PLATE READER SYSTEMS, COLORADO STOLEN VEHICLE DATABASE REPOSITORY, AND OTHER INFORMATION SYSTEM(S) THAT MAY ELEVATE AND IMPROVE CATPA'S CAPABILITY FOR INFORMATION AND INTELLIGENCE REGARDING THE REDUCTION OF AUTOMOBILE THEFT.
- 3.8.6. TRAINING:** INITIATIVES THAT INCLUDE PROGRAMS THAT PROVIDE OR DEVELOP SPECIALIZED TRAINING FOR AUTOMOBILE THEFT, FRAUD, AND RELATED CRIMINAL INVESTIGATIONS FOR PERSONNEL, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO LAW ENFORCEMENT PERSONNEL, COUNTY TITLE AND REGISTRATION CLERKS, DIVISION OF REVENUE TITLE CLERKS, AND PORT OF ENTRY OFFICIALS TO ENHANCE KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS, PROCEDURES, AND SYSTEMS TO DETECT, PREVENT, AND COMBAT AUTOMOBILE THEFT, FRAUD AND RELATED CRIMES.
- 3.8.7. VICTIM SUPPORT:** INITIATIVES THAT FOCUS ON SERVICING THE NEEDS OF VICTIMS AND MAY INCLUDE A VARIETY OF ASSISTANCE INCLUDING OPTIONS FOR ALTERNATIVE TRANSPORTATION, PAYMENT OF STORAGE AND/OR TOWING FEES, COSTS OF VEHICLE CLEANING, REIMBURSEMENT OF LIMITED NECESSARY REPAIRS, INSURANCE DEDUCTIBLE ASSISTANCE, AND OTHER ASSISTANCE REASONABLY RELATED TO NEGATING THE CONSEQUENCES OF AUTOMOTIVE OR AUTOMOBILE THEFT-RELATED CRIME.
- 3.8.8. OTHER PROGRAMS:** INITIATIVES THAT INVOLVE GRANT PROGRAMS ADDRESSING AUTOMOBILE THEFT OR AUTOMOBILE THEFT-RELATED CRIMES FROM OUTSIDE OR BEYOND THE SCOPE OR SUBJECT MATTER AREAS ALREADY IDENTIFIED BY 3.8.1 THROUGH 3.8.7 OF THESE RULES. EXAMPLES INCLUDE INITIATIVES ADDRESSING AUTOMOBILE THEFT OR AUTOMOBILE THEFT-RELATED

Publication Note: All ~~strikeout~~ text reflects deletions; all **red or RED CAPITALIZED** text reflects additions, and all **blue or blue-strikeout** text reflects existing text that has been relocated. Text may also reflect a combination of strikeout and blue font to indicate from where in the document the text has been removed.

**CRIMES THROUGH RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, SPECIAL STUDIES, BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT, VENTURE PROJECT INVESTMENTS, SECURITY REDEVELOPMENT, ETC.**

- 3.9. QUALIFIED APPLICANT:** A Colorado law enforcement agency, A state agency, A local unit of government, an independent school district, **OR A not-for-profit or for-profit organization that can demonstrate its proposed program addresses some aspect of automobile theft prevention.**

#### **CATPA 4: GRANT APPLICATIONS- SUBMISSION AND CONTENT**

- 4.1. APPLICATION SUBMISSION PERIOD.** The Board will announce annually in writing the availability of grant funding and the start of the application submission period. Notice may include mailings, posting ~~up~~ on **LINE AT <HTTPS://LOCKDOWNYOURCAR.ORG/GRANTS/>** ~~the CSP website~~, and through other agencies and organizations. **INTERESTED PARTIES MAY ALSO CONTACT CATPA BY EMAIL AT [CDPS\\_CATPA@STATE.CO.US](mailto:CDPS_CATPA@STATE.CO.US) FOR GRANT FUNDING AND SUBMISSION INFORMATION.**
- 4.2. APPLICATION FORMAT AND REQUIRED CONTENT.** All applications shall be in the form required by the grant announcement(s), consistent with the requirements set forth within **THE** statute, these rules, and the CATPA GMG.
- 4.2.1.** Each application shall specifically describe, at minimum, the type of automobile theft, prevention, **EDUCATION, OUTREACH**, enforcement, specialized training, prosecution, first-time offender rehabilitation, **VICTIM SUPPORT PROGRAM, OR TECHNOLOGY ENHANCEMENT, OR OTHER PROGRAMS ADDRESSING AUTOMOBILE THEFT BEING** ~~program~~ proposed.
- 4.2.2.** All grant applications must include or address **THE** required information, form(s), and instruction(s) provided in the CATPA GMG.
- 4.3. METHOD AND DELIVERY OF APPLICATION SUBMISSION.** Applications shall be filed with the Board as directed in the grant application, notice, and/or instructions.

#### **CATPA 5: GRANT AWARDS- BOARD EVALUATION AND AWARD SELECTION**

- 5.1. USE OF CATPA GMG.** The Board shall review applications consistent with **THE** statute, these rules, and with guidance provided within the most current publication of the CATPA GMG.

Publication Note: All ~~strikeout~~ text reflects deletions; all **red or RED CAPITALIZED** text reflects additions, and all **blue or blue-strikeout text** reflects existing text that has been relocated. Text may also reflect a combination of strikeout and blue font to indicate from where in the document the text has been removed.

- 5.2. MULTIJURISDICTIONAL PRIORITY.** Consistent with §42-5-112 (3) (a), CRS, these rules, and the CATPA GMG, the Board shall give priority to those grant applications representing multijurisdictional programs.
- 5.3. MINIMUM DESCRIPTION REQUIRED.** All applications must, at minimum, describe the type of automobile theft prevention, **EDUCATION, OUTREACH**, enforcement, specialized training, prosecution, first-time offender rehabilitation, **VICTIM SUPPORT PROGRAM, TECHNOLOGY ENHANCEMENT, OR OTHER PROGRAMS ADDRESSING AUTOMOBILE THEFT BEING** ~~program~~ proposed.
- 5.4. APPLICABLE REVIEW GUIDELINES.** The Board shall review each application to determine if the submitting entity meets the definition of a Qualified Applicant and for its completeness. The Board will then further review applications received ~~pursuant~~ **ACCORDING** to the following guidelines:
  - 5.4.1.** Whether the application **CLEARLY** identifies an automobile theft problem ~~clearly~~ **THAT** is measurable, and **IS** supported by relevant statistical evidence.
  - 5.4.2.** Whether the application minimizes duplicative or overlapping existing programs.
  - 5.4.3.** Whether the application provides a design wherein goals, **MEASUREMENTS, AND ACTIVITIES** are realistic and attainable.
  - 5.4.4.** Whether the application displays innovation in its concept, design, and/or operation. A project is considered innovative if it provides a new and different strategy or approach that prevents, deters, intervenes, or reduces the occurrence of automobile theft-related criminal activity **AS COMPARED TO STRATEGIES OR APPROACHES IMPLEMENTED HAVING THE SAME DESIGN OR SCOPE BY ANOTHER STATE OR COUNTRY.**
  - 5.4.5.** Whether the application demonstrates a realistic cost structure as compared against ~~its~~ **APPLICATION** goals (cost vs. benefit).
  - 5.4.6.** Whether the application includes a proposed evaluation design supported by relevant data to measure the effectiveness of the project and a plan for completing said evaluation consistent with applicable grant reporting requirements.
- 5.5. REVIEW EQUITY.** The Board will apply applicable statutes, these rules, and the CATPA GMG to ensure equitable review of grant applications received from law enforcement agencies and other Qualified Applicants.
- 5.6. GEOGRAPHICAL DISTRIBUTION.** The Board shall approve grants in a variety of geographic areas of the state to the extent that it is practicable to do so.

Publication Note: All ~~strikeout~~ text reflects deletions; all **red or RED CAPITALIZED** text reflects additions, and all **blue or blue-strikeout text** reflects existing text that has been relocated. Text may also reflect a combination of strikeout and blue font to indicate from where in the document the text has been removed.

## **CATPA 6: GRANT AWARD AMOUNT AND BOARD NOTIFICATION**

Subject to the funds available for a grant cycle, the Board shall approve grants ~~pursuant to~~ **UNDER** §42-5-112 (3) (B), CRS, these rules, and the guidance set forth by the most current publication of the CATPA GMG.

- 6.1. APPROVAL CRITERIA.** The Board shall predicate approved grant amounts upon consideration of the following criteria:
  - 6.1.1.** Existing activities or programs addressing the (same or substantially similar) automobile theft problem.
  - 6.1.2.** Statistical analyses of automobile theft problems in the identified project area.
  - 6.1.3.** Cooperation and coordination with other agencies/projects to address automobile theft problems.
  - 6.1.4.** Proposed plan for automobile theft crime prevention, enforcement, prosecution, and training.
  - 6.1.5.** Number of personnel **NECESSARY TO SATISFY AND CONTINUE ESSENTIAL OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES OF THE PROGRAM, CONSIDERING THE ESTIMATED NUMBER OF REGULAR AND POTENTIAL OVERTIME HOURS REQUESTED FOR FUNDING, CONTRIBUTED PERSONNEL BY THE GRANT APPLICANT, AND COST TO SUSTAIN THE CONTINUATION OF PERSONNEL** ~~involved in the project.~~
  - 6.1.6.** Applicant's experience, qualifications, and past performance. **EXPERIENCE, QUALIFICATIONS, AND PAST PERFORMANCE ARE** demonstrative of the ability of an applicant to operate a proposed project successfully.
  - 6.1.7. IDENTIFICATION OF CRITICAL, ESSENTIAL, AND SUPPLEMENTAL FUNDING LEVEL REQUESTS CONSISTENT WITH GUIDANCE SET FORTH WITHIN THE CATPA GMG.**
- 6.2. BOARD RECOMMENDATION FOR FUNDING.** The Board will notify all applicants submitting applications during an announced submission period of its decision to approve or deny an application in writing. **IN ADDITION TO DETERMINING WHETHER A PROPOSAL MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CATPA GRANT PROGRAM:**
  - 6.2.1.** The Board may attach other conditions to the award of a grant recommendation.
  - 6.2.2.** The Board shall not require as a condition of receipt of a grant that an agency, political subdivision, or other Qualified Applicant provide any additional monies to operate a recommended program consistent with §42-5-112 (3) (b), CRS.



Publication Note: All ~~strikeout~~ text reflects deletions; all **red or RED CAPITALIZED** text reflects additions, and all **blue or blue-strikeout text** reflects existing text that has been relocated. Text may also reflect a combination of strikeout and blue font to indicate from where in the document the text has been removed.

**6.2.3. THE BOARD WILL AWARD GRANT PROGRAMS CONSISTENT WITH FUNDING APPROPRIATIONS OR ANY STATUTORY CONDITIONS APPLICABLE TO IT'S USE. FOR EXAMPLE, GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATION OR TRANSFER OF MONEY INTO THE CATPA CASH FUND ARE LIMITED TO GRANT-FUNDED INITIATIVES SPECIFIED IN §42-5-112, CRS, WHICH DO NOT INCLUDE TRAINING, LAW ENFORCEMENT REQUESTS FOR ITEMS OTHER THAN OVERTIME, OR OTHER PROGRAMS.**

**6.3.** An applicant may accept or decline program funding recommended by the Board consistent with the schedule ~~set forth~~ within the CATPA GMG.

**6.4. UPON THE APPLICANT'S ACCEPTANCE OF THE BOARD RECOMMENDED FUNDING, THE SIGNED FINAL APPLICATION WILL BE FORWARDED TO THE CDPS EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OR THEIR DESIGNEE FOR SIGNATURE AND APPROVAL. GRANT FUNDING WILL NOT BE FINALIZED UNTIL A COPY OF THE SIGNED FINAL APPLICATION IS RECEIVED BY THE CATPA OFFICE AND SENT TO THE GRANT AWARD RECIPIENT BY USPS OR BY EMAIL AS AGREED UPON BY THE GRANT APPLICANT AND THE CATPA OFFICE.**

## **CATPA 7. PROCEDURES TO REVIEW GRANT RECIPIENT PROGRAM SUCCESS AND COMPLIANCE**

Grant recipients must submit program and financial reports ~~quarterly~~ **MONTHLY** to the Board following grant application approval and funds disbursement.

**7.1. REPORTING FORMS PROVIDING.** The Board will provide grant recipients with **THE** forms necessary to submit required ~~quarterly~~ **MONTHLY** financial and program progress/achievement reports.

**7.2. BOARD REVIEW CRITERIA.** Board review of ~~quarterly~~ **MONTHLY** reports submitted by grant recipients shall be consistent with **THE** identified goals and objectives of the CATPA.

**7.3. PROGRAM MONITORING.** The Board will monitor program implementation, financial administration, and achievement of declared program objectives ~~as is~~ consistent with §42-5-112 (3), CRS, these rules, and the CATPA GMG, ~~as is~~ applicable.

**7.4. BOARD FEEDBACK:** The Board will provide feedback to grant recipients submitting or failing to submit required ~~quarterly~~ **MONTHLY** reports, or ~~as is~~ appropriate and consistent with **THE** statute, the goals and objectives of CATPA, these rules, and the CATPA GMG.

Publication Note: All ~~strikeout~~ text reflects deletions; all **red or RED CAPITALIZED** text reflects additions, and all **blue or blue-strikeout text** reflects existing text that has been relocated. Text may also reflect a combination of ~~strikeout~~ and blue font to indicate from where in the document the text has been removed.

**7.5. FAILURE TO PERFORM.** In the event a grant recipient fails to perform or complete required ~~quarterly~~ **MONTHLY** financial and program progress/achievement reports, the Board may:

**7.5.1.** Elect to apply a Program Improvement Plan to the recipient to rehabilitate performance.

**7.5.2.** Recommend to the Director of **THE** CDPS or his or her designee for revocation or suspension of **THE** recipient's grant agreement, or

**7.5.3.** Recommend to the Director of **THE** CDPS or his or her designee not to reimburse expenses.

Failure to perform or rehabilitate may also affect future consideration of applications submitted to the Board by the same applicant.

**CATPA 8. ~~CATPA ANNUAL GRANT PROGRAM REPORTING PUBLICATIONS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE~~**

**THE BOARD WILL SUBMIT AN ANNUAL REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S OFFICE CONCERNING THE BENEFIT OF CATPA PROGRAMS FUNDED DURING THE PREVIOUS STATE FISCAL YEAR, ENDING JUNE 30<sup>TH</sup> OF EVERY YEAR. THIS REPORT WILL INCLUDE, BUT NEED NOT LIMIT ITSELF TO:** ~~All publications, standards, guidelines, and rules adopted and/or incorporated by reference in these rules will be made available for public inspection at any state publications depository library as is required by §24-4-103(12), CRS.~~

**8.1. THE NUMBER, TYPE OF INITIATIVE, GEOGRAPHIC DISTRIBUTION, AND AWARD AMOUNTS OF GRANT PROJECTS FUNDED.** ~~The following publications, standards, guidelines, and/or rules are adopted within these rules CONSISTENT in accordance with §24-4-103(12.5), CRS.~~

~~**8.1.1. Colorado Automobile Theft Prevention Authority (2020-2024). CATPA Grant Managers Guidance Manual. Lakewood, Colorado: Author.**~~

**8.2. THE NUMBER AND, IF AVAILABLE, THE PER CAPITA RATE OF REPORTED STOLEN VEHICLES IN GEOGRAPHICAL STATE AREAS DURING THE STATE FISCAL YEAR CONCLUDING ON JUNE 30<sup>TH</sup>, AS COMPARED TO THE PRIOR STATE FISCAL YEAR.** ~~The CSP CATPA Business Unit and the Board shall maintain copies of the complete texts of these rules and any incorporated or adopted publications, standards, guidelines, and rules and make each available for public inspection during regular business hours. Interested parties may contact the Board or the CSP CATPA Business Unit by phone at 303-239-4560 or by email~~

Publication Note: All ~~strikeout~~ text reflects deletions; all **red or RED CAPITALIZED** text reflects additions, and all **blue or blue-strikeout text** reflects existing text that has been relocated. Text may also reflect a combination of strikeout and blue font to indicate from where in the document the text has been removed.

~~at CDPS\_CATPA@STATE.CO.US. Interested parties may also access the following material(s) at their convenience online:~~

**8.2.1 THE REPORT WILL CORRELATE AS MUCH AS IS REASONABLE THE RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE EXISTENCE OF A CATPA FUNDED PROGRAM AND THE RATE OF AUTOMOBILE THEFT IN AN AREA.**

~~**8.2.1. Colorado Automobile Theft Prevention Authority (2020-2024). CATPA Grant Managers Guidance Manual.**~~

~~[HTTPS://LOCKDOWNYOURCAR.ORG/GRANTS/WWW.COLORADO.GOV/PACIFIC/CS P/CATPA.GRANTS.](https://lockdownyourcar.org/grants/www.colorado.gov/pacific/csp/catpa.grants)~~

**8.3. AN ANALYSIS OF THE ESTIMATED RETURN OF INVESTMENT ON THE USE OF THE CATPA FUNDS, WHICH MAY INCLUDE ANECDOTAL, INNOVATIVE, OR NON-STATISTICAL INFORMATION DEMONSTRATING BENEFITS REALIZED IN EXCHANGE FOR THE INVESTMENT OF GRANT FUNDS, AND/OR STATISTICAL DATA DEMONSTRATING:**

**8.3.1. THE COST OF INVESTMENT IDENTIFYING THE EXPENDITURE OF CATPA GRANT FUNDS,**

**8.3.2. THE VALUE OF INVESTMENT RESULTING FROM THE USE OF THE CATPA GRANT FUNDS, SUCH AS:**

**8.3.2.1. THE NUMBER OF RECOVERED STOLEN VEHICLES ATTRIBUTED BY CATPA FUNDED PROGRAMS MULTIPLIED BY THE AVERAGE DOLLAR LOSS OF A STOLEN VEHICLE AS ESTIMATED BY INDUSTRY STANDARDS (E.G., KELLY'S BLUE BOOK, ETC.) OR THE FBI ANALYSIS OF MOTOR VEHICLE THEFT USING THE SURVIVAL MODEL, OR**

**8.3.2.2. THE NUMBER OF GRANT-FUNDED ACTIVITIES MULTIPLIED BY AN AVERAGE DOLLAR VALUE IN ADDRESSING AUTOMOBILE THEFT, OR**

**8.3.3. THE RETURN ON INVESTMENT OF THE CATPA PROGRAM AS CALCULATED BY SUMMING THE DIFFERENCE OF THE TOTAL COST OF INVESTMENT AND VALUE OF INVESTMENT AND THEN DIVIDING BY THE COST OF THE INVESTMENT. THE RESULT OF THE RETURN ON INVESTMENT WILL YIELD A PERCENTAGE PERFORMANCE MEASURE TO BE USED TO EVALUATE THE EFFICACY OF THE CATPA PROGRAM.**

**8.4. AS ANNUAL DATA IS AVAILABLE AND ACCUMULATES, THE ANNUAL REPORT WILL COMPARE CURRENT YEAR DATA AGAINST DATA FROM PRIOR YEARS TO REVEAL TRENDS IN AUTOMOBILE THEFT, AUTOMOBILE THEFT-RELATED CRIMES, AND THE POTENTIAL EFFECT OF PROGRAMS ADDRESSING EITHER. ~~These rules do not include later~~**

Publication Note: All ~~strikeout~~ text reflects deletions; all **red or RED CAPITALIZED** text reflects additions, and all **blue or blue-strikeout** text reflects existing text that has been relocated. Text may also reflect a combination of strikeout and blue font to indicate from where in the document the text has been removed.

~~amendments to or editions of any publications, standards, guidelines, or rules incorporated by reference herein with the exception of EXCEPT FOR~~ statutorily mandated updates or forms and publications controlled by CATPA.

## **CATPA 9. PUBLICATIONS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE**

All publications, standards, guidelines, and rules adopted and/or incorporated by reference in these rules will be made available for public inspection at any state publications depository library as ~~is~~ required by §24-4-103 (12), CRS.

**9.1.** The following publications, standards, guidelines, and/or rules are adopted within these rules **CONSISTENT** ~~in accordance with~~ §24-4-103 (12.5), CRS.

**9.1.1.** Colorado Automobile Theft Prevention Authority (~~2020-2024~~). **CATPA Grant Managers Guidance Manual.** Lakewood, Colorado: Author.

**9.2.** The CSP CATPA Business Unit and the Board shall maintain copies of the complete texts of these rules and any incorporated or adopted publications, standards, guidelines, and rules and make each available for public inspection during regular business hours. Interested parties may contact the Board or the CSP CATPA Business Unit by phone at 303-239-4560 or by email at CDPS\_CATPA@STATE.CO.US. Interested parties may also access the following material(s) at their convenience online:

**9.2.1.** Colorado Automobile Theft Prevention Authority (~~2020-2024~~). **CATPA Grant Managers Guidance Manual.**  
~~HTTPS://LOCKDOWNYOURCAR.ORG/GRANTS/WWW.COLORADO.GOV/PACIFIC/CS~~  
~~P/CATPA.GRANTS.~~

**9.3.** These rules do not include later amendments to or editions of any publications, standards, guidelines, or rules incorporated by reference herein ~~with the exception of~~ **EXCEPT FOR** statutorily mandated updates or forms and publications controlled by CATPA.

## **CATPA 10. SEVERABILITY**

**IF ANY PROVISION OF THESE RULES OR THE APPLICATION THEREOF TO ANY PERSON OR CIRCUMSTANCE IS DETERMINED TO BE UNLAWFUL OR INVALID, THE REMAINING PROVISIONS OF THESE RULES WILL NOT BE AFFECTED ABSENT A SPECIFIC REFERENCE.**

Publication Note: All ~~strikeout~~ text reflects deletions; all **red or RED CAPITALIZED** text reflects additions, and all **blue or ~~blue-strikeout~~ text** reflects existing text that has been relocated. Text may also reflect a combination of strikeout and blue font to indicate from where in the document the text has been removed.